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TOWN OF COTTON VALLEY 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31, 2023 

The management of the Town of Cotton Valley, Louisiana offers readers of the Town of 
Cotton Valley, Louisiana's (Town) financial statements this narrative overview and analysis 
of the financial activities of the Town for the year ended December 31, 2023. This management 
discussion and analysis ("MD&A") is designed to provide an objective analysis of the Town's 
financial activities based on currently known facts, decisions, and conditions. It is intended to 
provide readers with a broad overview of Town finances. It is also intended to provide 
readers with an analysis of the Town's short-term and long-terrn activities based on 
information presented in the financial report and fiscal policies that have been adopted by 
the Town. Specifically, this section is designed to assist the reader in focusing on significant 
financial issues, provide an overview of the Town's financial activity, identify changes in the 
Town's financial position (its ability to address the next and subsequent year challenges), 
identify anv material deviations from the financial plan (the approved budget), and identify 
individual fund issues or concerns. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Town's basic financial 

statements. The Town's basic financial statements consist of government-wide financial 

statements, fund financial statements, and notes to the financial staternents. This report also 

contains other supplementary information, which is in addition to the basic financial 

statements themselves. 

Government-Wide Financial Sta tements  

Government-wide financial statements are designed by GASB Statement No. 3,1 to change the 

way in which governmental financial staternents are presented. It now provides readers with 

a concise "entity-wide" Staternent of Net Position and Statement of Activities, which seek to 

give the user of thefinancial statements a broad overview of the Town's financial position and 

results of operations in a manner similar to private sector businesses. 

The statement of net position presents information on all of the Town's assets and liabilities 

using the accrual hasis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private 

sector companies. The difference between the two is reported as net position. Over time, 

increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial 

position of the Town is improving or weakening. 

The statement of activities presents inforrnation which shows how the government's net 

position changed during this fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as 

the underlying event occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Thus, revenues 

and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows 

in future periods (e.g., uncollected taxes). 

Each of these reports is broken down between governmental activities and bustness-type 

activities. Governmental activities normally are those activities that are supported by taxes, 
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TOWN OF corroN VALLEY 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31, 2023 

licenses, permits, fines, and intergovernmental revenues, for example, the police department. 

Business-type activities are functions that are intended to support their costs through charges 

for services or fees, such as the Water and Sewer Departments. 

Government-wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net position may, overtime, serve as a useful indicator of a government's financial 
position. At the close of the most recent fiscal year, the Town's assets exceeded its liabilities by 
$2,892,765 (net position); this represents a increase of $151,293 from the last fiscal year. Of this 
total net asset amount, $(319,912) is unrestricted net position. The Town's net position is 
comprised of $290,343 from governmental activities and $2,602,422 from business-type activities. 

The following is a condensed statement of the Town of Cotton Valley's net position as of 

December 31, 2023: 

Assets 

Go ve rnmenta 1-Type Activities Bus ine s s -Type Activities To ta 1 

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 

      

Current & Other Assets $ 10,332 $ 14,943 $ 636,360 $ 411,541 $ 646,692 $ 426,484 

Capital Assets (net) 311,587 327,448 2,551,584 2,661,344 2,863,171 2,988,792 

Total Assets $ 321,919 $ 342,391 $3,187,944 $3,072,885 $3,509,863 $3,415,276 

Liabilities 

      

Other Liabilities $ 13,100 $ 30,988 $ 123,720 $ 126,564 $ 136,820 $ 157,552 

Long-Terrn Liability 

  

461,802 494,824 461,802 494,824 

Total Liabilities $ 13,100 $ 30,988 $ 585,522 $ 621,388 $ 598,622 $ 652,376 

DefeiTed Inflows of Resources $ 18,476 $ 21,428 $ 

 

$ 18,476 $ 21,428 

Net Position 

      

Invested In Capital Assets, Net $ 311,587 $ 327,448 $2,551,584 $2,661,344 $2,863,171 $2,988,792 

Contributed Capital 

  

248,905 248,905 248,905 248,905 

Restricted 54,219 32,354 46,382 40,877 100,601 73,231 

Unrestricted (75,463) (69,827) (244,449) (499,629) (319,912) (569,456) 

Total Net Position $ 290,343 $ 289,975 $2,602,422 $2,451,497 $2,892,765 $2,741,472 

By far the largest portion of the Town's net position, $2,863,171 reflects its investment in capital 

assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery and equipment, town infrastructure, etc.) less any related 
debt used to acquire those assets still outstanding. The Town uses these capital assets to provide 

services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although 
the Town's capital assets are reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources 

needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since capital assets themselves 
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

The Town has accumulated $32,154 and $14,229 restricted for customer deposits and debt service, 

respectively. 

The balance of ($319,912) is unrestricted net position, which may be used to meet the 
government's on-going obligations to citizens and creditors. 
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TOWN OF COTTON VALLEY 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31, 2023 
Continued 

The Town has a total outstanding debt of $494,915, which was used to finance some of the 

$2,863,171 capital assets. Total liabilities of $598,622 are equal to 21% of the total net position. 

The following is a summary of the statement of activities: 

 

Ouvcniniratal-Typt Aclivite, Bu,me,s-Typc Activite, Tuial 

2023 2022 2023 2022 1013 2022 

Revenue 

      

Program Revenue $ 120,884 $ 160,354 5 757,871 $ 424,214 5 878,757 5 584,568 

General Revenue & Transfers 197,436 246,645 16,29h (57,110) 213,73) 189.535 

Total Revenue $ 318,320 $ 406,490 5 774,169 $ 167,104 š1,09, ,489 $ 774.103 

Expenses 

      

General Sr A dministra tive $ 177,774 $ 294,722 

  

5 177,774 5 '94,711 

Public Safety 124,318 73,375 

  

124,318 73,375 

Other 15,860 16,625 

  

15,8h0 lh.h25 

Water Sr Sewer Utilities 

  

623,244 533,631 623,244 533.h31 

Total Expenses $ 317,u52 $ 184,722 5 623,244 $ 515,h31 $ 941,100 $ 918.153 

livrease (Decrease) in Net Position 3o8 22,277 150,925 (166,527.) 151:791 (144.250) 

Net Position, Beginning $ 2R9,975 $ 267,O8 $2,451,497 $2,h18,024 52,741,472 52.885,722 

Prior Period Adjustment 

    

U 0 

Net Position, Ending $ 290,343 $ 289,97S 52,602,422 $2,451,497 52,892,765 52.741,472 

Governmental Activities 

The governmental activities of the Town include General Government and Public Safety. i n that 
revenues normally associated with municipal operations, (e.g., property tax, franchise fees, 
license fees. fines, and operating grants) are sufficient for the funding of these activities. 

Business-type Activities 

The business-type activities of the Town are those that charge a fee to customers for the services 
provided. The Town has two business-type activities. which are accounted for in enterprise fiinds. 
The Town uses enterprise funds to account for the revenues and expenses related to the provision of 
water and sewer services. 
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TOWN OF COTTON VALLEY 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31, 2023 
Continued 

The following is a summary of the business-type activities of the Town: 

Opera ting Net Income 

Revenue Net Operating (Loss) From 

of Purchases Expenses Opera tions 

Year ended December 31, 2022 424,2-14 5)3,631 $ (1(19,417) 

Year ended December 31, 2023 757,873 623,244 134,629 

Inc rea se (Decrease) Between Years 333,659 89,613 S 244,046 

Fund Financial Statements - Governmental Funds 

The fimd financial statements provide more detailed information about the Town's most significant 
funds - not the Town as a whole. Funds are accounting devices that the Town uses to keep track of 
specific sources of funding and spending for a particular purpose. 

The Town currenðy maintains two individual governmental fund types. The fund type includes the 
General fund and the Sales tax fund. Information is presented separately in the Governmental 
Funds Balance Sheet (Statement C) and in the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues. 
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances (Statements E) for the General Fund and the Sales tax 
fund. The General Fund is considered to be a major fund. 

The Town adopts an annual budget for the General Fund and the Special Revenue fund. A 
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance is presented in the Required 
Supplemental Information Schedules 1 and 2, which compares actual revenues and expenditures to 
the original budget and amended budget figures. 

Financial Analysis of the ToNN n's Governmental Funds 

The Town of Cotton Valley's governmental fund (General Fund) reported an endine fund balance 
(deficit) of ($75,463), which is a decrease of $5,636 from the prior year. The entire ending fund 
halance (deficit) of ($75,463) is unreserved. 

Fund Financial Statements - Proprietary Funds 

The Town maintains two proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are used to report the same 
functions as business-type activities. The Town uses enterprise funds (the first type of proprietary 
fund) to account for its Water and Sewer Operations. These enterprise funds report the same 
functionspresented as business-type activities in the government-wide tinancial statements. 
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TOWN OF COTTON VALLEY 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31, 2023 
Continued 

Financial Analysis of the Town's Proprietary Fund 

The Town's proprietary funds show an increase in ending retained earnings of $150.925. The 2023 
operating income t loss) of the Utility fund of $170.010 represents an increase in revenue of $349,948 
and an itr.rease in expenses of $90,577 from 2022 figures. 

Financial statements of enterprise funds are presented on the same basis of accounting as in both 
the governmental-wide financial statements and the individual fund statements. All comments and 
analysis made under business-type activities apply to these funds. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

The Town adopted an original budget for the General Funcl and the Sales Tax fund and an amended 
budeet during the year. For the General fund actual expenditures and other uses weir underbudgeted 
expenditures and other uses by $78,976. For the Sales tax fund actual expenditures and other uses 
did not exceed budgeted expenditures and other uses. 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

The total investment in net capital assets as of December 31. 2023 is $2,863,171. 

Capital assets of $53,982 were purchased or constructed in fiscal 2023 for business type activities. 
There were no capital assets purchased or constructed in fiscal 2023 for government type 
activities. 

Current Financial Factors 

The Town is trying to get its policies and procedures hack in place with the current 
administration. 

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town of Cotton Valley's 
finances for all with an interest in the government's operations. Questions concerning any of the 
information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to 
Town Clerk. 478 Resident St, Cotton Valley, Louisiana 71018. 

-5-

 



JUDY MONCRIEF CPA LLC 
910 Paerremont Road, Suite 311 

Shreveport, Louisiana 71106-2069 

Phone (318) 683-1002 Fax (318) 670-8021 Email jemcpat.4)att.net 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Mayor and Board of Alderrnen 
Town of Cotton Vallev 
Cotton Valley, LA 

Opinions 

We have audited the accompanyini; financial statements of the governmental activities. the business-type 
acti% ities, and each major fund, and the aggreuate remaininu fund information of the Town of Cotton 
Valle\ ("Town"). as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023, and the related notes to the tinancial 
statements. which collectively comprise the Town's basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents. 

In our opinion. the financial statements referred to above present fairly. in all material respects. the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities. the business-type activities. each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town, as of December 31. 2023. and the respective 
changes in financial position and where applicable. cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance 
with accounting principles generally acc•epted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with audinne standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Town 
of Cotton Valley, Louisiana, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant 
ethical requirernents relating to our audit We believe that the audit e% idence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation a these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America: this includes the 
design, implementation. and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events. considered in the aguregate, that raise doubt about the Town of Cotton Valley. Louisiana's ability 
to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the tinancial statement date, including any 
currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objecti% es are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
frorn material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our 
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a 
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guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will alway s detect 
a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material niisstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting frorn error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions. 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control Misstatements are considered material if there is a 
substantial likelihood that. individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a 
reasonable user based on the financial statements 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. and design and perform audit procedures responshe to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining. on a test basis. evidence regarding the arnounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Ohtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Town of Cotton Valley, Louisiana's internal control. Accordingly. no such opinion is expressed 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accountmg policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made bv management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

• Conchide whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise 
substantial doubt ahout the Town of Cotton Valley , Louisiana's ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time 

We are required to communicate w ith those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, signiticant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that 
we identified during the audit 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting 
for placing the hasic tinancial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We 
have applied ce t tain limited procedures to the required supplementa ly information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the infonnation and comparing the information for consistency 
with management's responses to inquiries. the basic financial statements. and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide anv assurance on 
the infonnation because the limited procedures do not provide me with sufficient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance. 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Town's basic tinancial statements. The schedule of compensation paid to elected officials, the 
schedule of compensation, benefits and other payments to agency head, and schedule of insurance are 
presented for the purpose of additional analysis and are not a required part of the hasic financial statements. 
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures. including comparing and reconciling such infonnation 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare basis financial statements or to the 
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America In our opinion, the supplementary 
information is fairly stated. in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
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Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and 
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the management's discussion and analysis 
and budgetary comparison information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic 
financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated May 26, 2024, on 
our consideration of the Town's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose 
of this report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of the testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Town's internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 

9„,p,/  e fit„, 
Judy Moncrie CPA LLC 
Shreveport, Louisiana 
May 26, 2024 
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Statement A 
TOWN OF COTTON VALLEY, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
AS OF DECEMBER 31,2023 

ASSETS 

Primary GovernMent 

Total 
Governmental 

Activities 
Business-Type 

Activities 

   

Cash and Equivalents $ 71,478 $ 330,767 $ 402,245 

Receivables 33,012 165,052 198,064 

Grant Receivables 

   

Internal Balances (94,158) 94,158 

 

Restricted Assets 

 

46,383 46,383 

Other Assets 

   

Capital Assets (Net) 311,587 2,551,584 2,863,171 

Total Assets 321,919 S 3,187,944 S 3,509,803 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 0 0 

 

LIABILITIES 

   

Accounts, Salaries, and Other Payables 13,100 $ 48,861 $ 61,961 

Current Loans, Bonds, and Interest Payahle 

 

33,113 33,113 

Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets 

 

41,746 41,746 

Lease Obliga tion 

 

65,664 65,664 

Loans and Bonds Payable 

 

396,138 396,138 

Total Liabilities 13,100 585,5” ;98,621 

Deferred hiflows of Resources 18,476 0 18,476 

NET POSITION 

   

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 311,587 2.551,584 2,863,171 

Contributed Capital 

 

248,905 248,905 

Restricted for Deht 

 

46,382 46,381 

Restricted for Public Works 54,219 

 

54,219 

Unrestricted (75,463) (244,449) (319,912) 

TOTAL NET POSITION S 291),343 $ 2,6(12,422 $ 2,892,765 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Statement B 

TOWN OF COTTON VALLEY, LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR ENDING 
DECEMBER 31,2023 

Governmental Activities: 

Program Revenues Net (Expenses) Revenues and 
Changes of Primary Government Opera ting Capital 

Charges for Grants and Grants and 
Expense Services ( 'on tributions Contributions 

Giivernmental 
Activities 

Business-Type 
Activities Total 

      

General Government 177.774 $ 

 

$ (177,774) 

  

$ (177,774) 
Public Safety 124,318 119,884 

 

(4,434) 

  

(4,434) 
Highways and Streets 

 

1,000 1,000 

  

1,000 
Depreciation 15,860 

 

(15.860) 

  

(15,560) 
Total Governmental Activities 317,952 119,884 1,000 (197,068) 

  

(197,068) 

Business-Type Activities: 

      

Water ana Sewer 623,244 582,000 175,873 

  

134,629 134,629 
Total Business-Type Activities 613.244 5S2,000 175,873 

  

134,610 134,6.19 

Total Primary Government 041.106 701,£i$-1 176,873 (197,f168) 

 

134,610 (62,430) 

 

General Revenues. 

      

Ad Vd lorern Ta kes 

 

38,076 $ 

 

$ 36,076 

 

Sales Taxes 

 

112,325 

  

112,325 

 

Franchise Fees 

 

18,532 

  

16,532 

 

Licenses and Penults 

 

11.637 

  

11,637 

 

Intergovernmental 

      

Investment Earnings 

      

Other General Revenues 

 

16,866 

 

16,289 33,155 

 

Transfers - Net 

      

Total General Revenues and Transfers 

 

197,436 

 

16,296 1 13,73? 

 

Change in Net Position 

 

368 

 

150,925 151,293 

 

Net Position - Beginning 

 

289.975 

 

2,451,497 2,741,472 

 

Net Position - Ending 

 

/90,343 

 

2,602,422 2,892,765 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Statement C 
TOWN OF COTTON VALLEY, LOUISIANA 

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
AS OF DECEMBER 31,2023 

ASSETS 

General 

Fund 

Sdles Tax 

Fund 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

   

Cash and Equivalents 15,645 $ 55,833 $ 71,478 

Receivables 33,012 

 

33,012 

Grant Receivable 

   

Interfunds .1,614 

 

1,614 

Other Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

   

$ 50,271 $ 55,833 $ 106,104 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

   

Liabilities: 

   

Accounts, Salaries, and Other Payables $ 13,1M $ $ 13,100 

Interfunds 94,158 1,614 95.772 

Total Liabilities 107,258 1,614 108,872 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 18,476 U 18,476 

Fund Balances: 

   

Restricted for Publi( Works 

 

54,219 54,219 

Unassigned (75,463) 

 

(75,463) 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 50,271 $ 55,833 $ 106,104 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Schedule D 
TOWN OF COTTON VALLEY, LOUISIANA 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 
TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

AS OF DECEMBER 31,2023 

Amounts Reported tor Governmental Activities in the 

Staternent of Net Positinn are Difference Because: 

Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds tement (.21,244) 

Capital Assets Used in Governmental Activities are Not 

Financial Resources and, Therefore, are Not Reported in 

The Governmental Funds: 

Governmental Capital Assets 526,920 

Less Accumulated Depreciation (215,333) 311,587 
  

Net Position of Governmental Activities (L-ltatement A) 290,343 

The accompanying notes are an ntegral part ot these financial statements. 
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Statement E 
TOWN OF COTTON VALLEY, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31,2023 

REVENUES 

Ta xes: 

Genera 1 

Fund 

Sales Tax 

Fund 

Total 

Govern men t a I 
Funds 

   

Ad Valorem S 38,076 $ $ 38,076 

Sales and Use 

 

1'12,325 112,325 
Franchise Fees 18,532 

 

18,532 

Licenses el nd Permits 11,637 

 

11,b37 

Intergovernmental Revenues: 

   

Loca l 

   

Grants 1,000 

 

1,000 

Fines and Forfeitures 119,884 

 

119,884 

Use of Money and Interest Earnings 

   

Other Revenues 16,866 

 

16,866 
Total Revenues -,05,Q95 $ 112,325 $ 118,1'70 

EXPENDITURES 

   

General Government S 177,774 $ - $ '177,774 
Public Safety 124,318 

 

124,318 

Highway and Streets 

   

Capital Outlay 

Total Expenditures 

   

30"),(19") 

 

3 0 '),09') 

Excess (Deficiency)) of Revenues Over (Under) 

   

Expenditures: (96,097) 1'12,325 1(1,2-)8 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

   

Operating Transfers In 90,460 

 

90,460 
Operating Transfers Out 

 

(90,460) (90,4(i0) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 90,460 (90,460) 

 

Net Change in Fund Balance (5,(i37) 21,865 1 o, ")28 

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year (69,826) 32,354 (37,472) 

Fund Balance - Ending (75,4(13) $ $ (21,244) 

The accompanying notes are art integral part of these financial statements. 
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Schedule F 
TOWN OF COTTON VALLEY, LOUISIANA 

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS, 

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31,2023 

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the 

Statement of Activities are Difference Because: 

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds (Statement E) 

Governmental Funds Report Capital Outlays as Expenditures However, 

In the Statement of Activities, the Costs of Those Assets is Allocated Over 

Their Estimated Useful Lives and Reported as Depreciation Expense. 

This is the Amount by Whiih Capital Outlay (SO) Less 

Depreciation (S15,860) in the Current Period. 

Nona Boca tion Method of Accounting for Prepayments Used in Fund 

Statements (Prepayment Does Not Provide Expendable Financial Resources) 

Expenses Reported in the Statement of Activities That Do Not Require 

The Use of Current Financial Resources and Not Reported as Expenditures 

In Govemmental Funds 

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities (Sta tement B) 

16,228 

(15,800) 

368 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Statement G 
TOWN OF COTTON VALLEY, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
AS OF DECEMBER 31,2023 

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds 

 

Utility (Memo Only) 

  

Fund 2023 2022 

ASSETS 

Current Assets: 

   

Cash and Equivalents $ 330,767 $ 330,767 $ 238,245 

Receiva bles 165,052 165,052 71,37£i 

Interfunds 94,158 94;158 61,040 

Total Current Assets '389,977 589,977 370,663 

Restric ted Assets: 

   

Cash and Equivalents 46,383 46,383 40,878 

Non-CurrentAssets: 

   

Net Capital Assets 2,551,584 2,55'1,584 2,661,344 

Total Non-Current Assets 2,551,584 2,551,584 2,661,344 

TOTAL ASSETS 3,187,944 3,187,944 3,072,885 

LIABILITIES 

Current Liahilities: 

   

Accounts, Salaries, and Other Payahles 48,860 $ 48,860 $ 54,452 

Accrued Interest 1,479 1,479 1,621 

Capital Lease - Current 18,033 18,033 20,178 

Revenue Bonds - Current 13,602 13,602 13,084 

Total Current Liabilities 81,974 81,974 89,335 

Current Liabilities Payahle from Restricted Assets 41,746 41,746 37,227 

Non-Current Liabilities 

   

Lease Obligation 65,664 65,664 £t5,0S4 

Loans and Bonds Payable 396,138 396,138 409,740 

Total Non-Current Liabilitis 461,802 461,802 494,824 

Total Liabilities 585,522 585,522 621,386 

NET POSITION 

   

Net Investment in Capital Assets 2,551,584 2,551,584 2,661,344 

Contributed Capital 248,905 248,905 248,905 

Restricted For Debt Service 52,590 52,590 40,57£i 

Unrestricted (250,657) (250,657) (499,630) 

TOTAL NET POSITION S ),602,429 2,009,42-' S 2,451,497 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statemenk. 
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`7;tatement H 
TOWN OF COTTON VALLEY, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31,2023 

Operating Revenues 

Charges for Services - 

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds 

Lltility 

Fund 

(Memo Only) 
2023 2022 

   

Water and Sewer Sales $ 582,000 $ 582,000 $ 408,910 

Grant Proceeds 175,873 '175,873 15,304 

Other Income 16,289 16,289 

 

Total Operating Revenue 774,162 774,162 424,214 

Operating Expenses 

   

Salaries 47,967 47,967 39,1 /8 

Insurance 32,686 32,686 /1,95/ 

Truck Expense 13,344 13,344 6,418 

Maintenance and Repairs 109,37b 109,376 21,365 

Miscellaneous Expenses 23,565 23,565 25,658 

Safe Drinking Water Fees 11,767 11,767 /3,066 

Contract Labor 13,200 '13,200 '14,400 

Prisoner Labor Expense 41,005 41,005 29,368 

Office Expense 18,918 18,918 28,402 

Materials and Supplies 20,500 20,500 13,766 

Utilities 24,391 24,391 35,878 

Trash Pickup Services 83,692 83,692 96,459 

Depreciation '163,741 161,741 157,715 

Total Operating Expenses 604,152 604,152 513,575 

Operating Income (Loss) 170,010 '170,010 (89,361) 

Nonopera tang Revenues (Expenses) 

   

Interest Earnings 7 7 555 

Interest Expenses (19,092) (19,092) (20,056) 

Total Nonoperating Revertues (Expenses) (19,085) (19,085) (19,501) 

Income Before Contributions and Transfers 150,9/5 150,925 (108,862) 

State and Local Grartts 

Transfers In 

Transfers Out 

  

(57,665) 

Change in Net Position 150,925 150,925 (166,527) 

Total Net Position - Beginning 2,451,-197 2,451,497 2,618,024 

Total Net Position - Ending 2,6(12,422 2,602,422 2.451,497 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Statement I 
TOWN OF COTTON VALLEY, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31,2023 

Cash Flows from Operating Actitivities 

1023 2022 

  

Receipts from Customers anti Users $ 492,845 S 453,940 

Grant Proceeds Received $ 175,873 S 15,304 

Other Cash Received 16,289 

 

Payments to Suppliers (391,831) (309,(i98) 

Payments to Emplovees (47.967) (39.128) 

Payments to Other Funds (33.118) (15.304) 

 

212,091 103,114 

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities 

  

Transfer to Other Funds 

 

(57,665) 

Advances from Other Funds 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Fmancing Activities 

   

(57,665) 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financmg Activities 

  

Purchases of Capital Assets $ (53,982) S (14,296) 

Lease Obligation (21,565) (19,962) 

State and LOidlGrants 

  

Principal Paid on Capital Deht (13,084) (12,541) 

Interest Paid on Capital Debt (19,234) (19.511) 

Net Cash Provided (Used) hy Capital and Related Financing Activities (107,865) (66,310) 

Cash Flows from Investin€ Activities 

  

Interest and Dividends Received 

 

555 

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 7 53 

Net Increase (Decrease) ui Cash and Equivalents 104,233 (18,306) 

Cash and Equivalents - Beginning of Year 279,124 297,430 

Cash and Equivalents - Ending of Year $ 383,357 S 279,124 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Statement I (Continued) 
TOWN OF COTTON VALLEY, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31,2023 
(CONTINUED) 

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided (Used) 

by Opera tirtg Ac t iv ties 

2023 

   

Operating Income S 170,010 $ (89,361) 

Depreciation 163,741 157,715 

(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable (93,(i74) 34,029 

(Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Expenses 

  

(Increase) Decrease in Due from Other Funds (33,118) (15,303) 

Increase (Decrease) in Customer Deposits 4,519 6,001 

Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 613 7.033 

Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Liabilities 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

  

S 212,091 S 105.114 

Reconciliation of Total Cash and Cash Investments: 

  

Current Assets - Cash and Cash Investments $ 330,767 $ 238,246 

Restricted Assets - Cash and Cash Investments 52,590 40,878 

Total Cash and Cash Investments $ 38";,357 5 ")70,1")4 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOWN OFCOTTON VALLEY, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31,2023 

INTRODUCTION 

The Town was incorporated under the provisions of Lawrason Act. The Town operates under a 
Mayor-Council form of governnlent. 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The Town of Cotton Valley (Town)'s financial statenlents are prepared in conformity generally 
accepted accounting prmciples (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
is responsible for estahlishing GAAP for state and local governments through its pronouncements 
(Statements and Interpretations). The more significant accounting pohcies established by GAAP 
and used tlle Town are discussed below. 

Reporting Entity 

As the municipal governing authority, for reporting purposes, the Town is considered a separate 
financial reporting entity. The financial reporting entity consists of (a) the primary government 
(Town), (b) organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable, and (c) 
other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary 
government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to he 
misleading or incomplete. 

GASB establishes criteria for determining which component units should be considered part 
of the Town for financial reporting purposes. The basic criteria for including a potential 
component unit within the reporting entity is financial accountability. The GASB has set forth 
criteria to be considered in determining financial accountability. This criterion includes: 

1. Appointing a voting majority of an organization's governing body, and; 
a. The ability of the Town to inlpose its will on that organization and/or 
b. The potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to or 

impose specific financial burdens on the Town. 

2. Organizations for which the Town does not appoint a voting inajority hut are fiscally 
dependent on the Town. 

3. Organizations for which the reporting entity financial statements would be misleading if data 
of the organization is not included because of the nature or significance of the relationship. 

In addition, the GASB states that a legally separate, tax-exempt organization should be 
reported as a component unit of a reporting entity if all of the following criteria are met: 

1. The economic resources received or held hy the separate organization are entirely or almost 
entirely for the direct benefit of the primary government, its component units, or its 
constituents. 

These notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
-19-

 



TOWN OFCOTTON VALLEY, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31,2023 

3. The primary government is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise access, a majority of the 
economic resources received or held by the separate organization. 

3. The economic resources received or held by an individual organization that the specific 
primary government, or its component units, is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise 
access, are significant to that primary government. 

In addition, other organizations should be evaluated as potential component units if they are 
closely related to, or financially integrated with, the primary government. 

Based on the criteria described above, there are no component units to be included as part of 
the reporting entity. 

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Staternents 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement 
of changes in net position) report information on all of the nonliduciary activities of the primary 
government. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these 
statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a 
significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported 
separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is 
financially accountable. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given 
function or seginent are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly 
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues inchide 1)charge to customers 
or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit frorn goods, services, or privileges provided by a 
given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the 
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items 
not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provicled for governmental funds and proprietary funds. 
Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as 
separate columns in the fund financial statements. 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounling, and Financial Statement Presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues 
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the 
timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are 
levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements 
imposed by the provider have been met. 

These notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOWN OFCOTTON VALLEY, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31,2023 

Governnlental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the nlodified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon 
as they are both measurable and availahle. Revenues are considered to be available when they are 
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current 
period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be availahle if they are collected 
within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a 
liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as 
expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when 
payment is due. 

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are 
all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the 
current fiscal period. Only the portion of special assessment receivables due within the current 
fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other 
revenue items are considered to he measurable and available only when cash is received by the 
government. 

The Town reports the following major governmental funds: 

The General Fund is the Town's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial 
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another 
fund. 

The Sales Tax Fund is the Town's special revenues fund. It accounts for the proceeds of sales taxes 
levied for operations of the police department and maintenance of streets, and operations of 
streetlights. 

The Town reports the following major proprietary funds: 

The Water and Sewer fund is to account for the provision of water and sewer services to the 
residents of the Town. All activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this 
fund, but not limited to, administration, operations, maintenance, financing, and related deht 
service and billing. 

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 
1989, generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial 
statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the 
Governinental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following 
suhsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to 
this same limitation. The government has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector 
guidance. 

As a general rule the effect of mterfund activity has been eliminated from the governnlent-wide 
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other charges 
between the governmenes enterprise operations. Elimination of those cha rges would distort the direct 
cos ts and program revenues repor ted for the various func tions come med. 

These notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOWN OF COTTON VALLEY, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31,2023 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, 
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants 
and contributions, including special assessnlents. Intenially dedicated resources are reported as 
general revenues rather thanas program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperatmg items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result fronl pnwiding services and producing and delivering 
goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. Plincipal operating 
revenues of the proprietary funds include water and sewer services to the residents of the Town. 
Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the costs of sales and services, administrative 
expenses, supplies, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this 
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Town's policy to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

Deposits and Investments 

The Town's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposi ts, and short-
term investments with original matun ties of three months or less froni the date of acquisition. 
State law and the Town's investment policy allow the Town to invest in col la teralized certif ica tes of 
deposits, government back securities, commercial paper, the state sponsored investment pool, and 
mutual funds consisting solely of government backed securities. Investments for the Town are 
reported at fair value. 

Receivables and Payables 

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangenlents outstanding at 
the encl of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other funds" (i.e., the current portion 

interfund loans) or "advances to/from other funds" (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund 
loans). All other outstanding balances hetween funds are reported as "due to/froni other funds." 
Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities 
are reported in the government-wide financial statements as "internal balances." 

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund 
balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not 
available for appropriation and are not expendable availahle financial resources. 

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net cif an allowance for uncollectible. The 
Town calculates its allowance for uncollectible accounts using historical collection data and, in 
certain cases, specific account analysis. 

These notes are an mtegral part of these fmancial statenlents. 
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TOWN OFCOTTON VALLEY, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31,2023 

Property taxes are levied on a calendar year basis and become due on January 1 of each vear. 
The following is a summary of authorized and levied ad valorem taxes: 

Authorized Levied Expiration 
Taxes Due For: Millage Millage Date 
General Fund 7.25 7.25 Statutory 

SrrIrs Taxes. The Town's sales tax percentage is 1% ancl may only be used for the operations of 
the police department and for the maintenance of streets and operations of streetlights. The 
Webster Parish School Board collects the tax for the town, remitting to the town on a weekly 
basis, for a fee of 1% of collections. 

Prepaid Items 

Certain payrnents to vendors retlect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are 
recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide financial statements. 

Restricted Assets 

Restricted assets include cash and cash investments in the Proprietary funds which are restricted to 
their use. These restrictions are principally related to requirements of bond issues and utility meter 
deposits. It is the Town's policy to use restricted assets before unrestricted assets for their intended 
purposes. 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets(e.g., roads, bridges, 
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type 
activities columns in the government- wide financial statements. Capital assets are capitalized 
at historical cost or estimated cost if historical cost is not available. Donated assets are recorded 
as capital assets at their estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The Town 
maintains a threshold level of $1,000 or more for capitalizing capital assets. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or 

materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. 

All capital assets, other than land, are depreciated using the straight-line rnethod over the 
following useful lives of forty years for water and sewer system and lines, five to fifty years 
for buildings and improvements, three years for vehicles, and three to ten years for 
equipment. 

These notes are an integral part of these financial staternents. 



TOWN OF COTTON VALLEY, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31,2023 

Compensated Absences 

The Town allows up to two weeks of vacation based upon vears of service. No carryover or accrued 
vacation leave is allowed. Unused vacation time will he applied upon termination. In addition, 
unused accumulated sick pay will not be paid upon separation of service. 

Long-Term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements, and the proprietary fund tvpes in the fund financial 
statements, long-term deht and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicahle 
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net 
position. Bond payables are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond 
issuance costs are reported as deferred charge and amortized over the teml of related deht. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well 
as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of the debt issued is reported as 
other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources 
while discounts on deht issuances are reported as other financing uses, issuance costs, whether or not 
withheld from the actual deht proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

Comparative Data/Reclassifications 

Comparative total data for the prior year have been presented only for enterprise funds in the fund 
financial statements in order to provide an understanding of the changes in the financial position 
and operations of these funds. Also, certain amounts presented in the prior year data have heen 
reclassified in order to be consis tent with the current year's presenta tion. 

Estinlates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the Uni ted States of America require management to make estima tes and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date 
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues, expenditures, and expenses during 
the reporting period. Actual results could differ from the estimates. 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

The tnwn is exposed to various risks of loss rela ted to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; 
errors and omissions; and injuries to employees. To handle such risk of loss, the town maintains 
commercial insurance policies covering its vehicles.. professional liability, and surety bond coverage. 
No claims were paid on any of the policies which exceeded the policies' coverage amounts. There 
were no significant reductions in insurance coverage during the year ended December 31, 2023. 

These notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



TOWN OF COTTON VALLEY, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31,2023 

FUND BALANCE AND FUND EQUITY 

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balances are classified as follows: 

Non-spendable - amounts that are not in spendable form (such as prepaids) or are required 
to be maintained intact. 

Restricted - amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers (such as granters, 
bondholders, and higher levels of government), through constitutional provisions, or hy 
enabling legislation. 

Committed - amounts constrained to specific purpose by a government itself, using its highest 
level of decision-making authoritv; to be reported as committed, amounts cannot be used for any 
other purpose unless the government takes the same highest level of action to remove or change 
the constraint. 

Assigned  - amounts the government intends to use for a specific purpose; intent can be expressed 
by the governing body or by an official or body to which the governing body delegates the 
authority. 

Unassigned  - amounts that are availahle for any purpose; positive amounts are reported only in 
the general fund. 

The governing body establishes (and modifies or rescinds) fund balance commitments hy 
passage of an ordinance or resolution. This is tvpicallv done through adoption and 
amendment of the budget. A fund balance commitment is further indicated in the hudget 
document as a designation or commitment of the fund (such as for special incentives). 
Assigned fund balances is established hy the governing body through adoption or 
amendment of the hudget as intended for specific purpose (such cis the purchase of fixed 
assets, construction, debt service, or for other purposes). 

Fund Equity  

In the government wide statements, net position is displayed in three components: 
a. Net investment in capital assets - Consists of capital assets including restricted capital 

assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any 
bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings and deferred inflows of resources that are 
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 

h. Restricted net position - Consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred 
inflows of resources related to those assets. Constraints may be placed on the use, either by 
(1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other 
governments; or(2) law through constitutional provisions orenabling 

c. Unrestricted net position - Net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, 
and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in either of the other two categories 
of net position. 

These notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOWN OF COTTON VALLEY, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31,2023 

Proprietary fund equity is classified in the same rnanner as in the goyernrnent-wide 

statements. In the fund financial staternents, gcwernmental fund equity is classified as fund 

halance. 

Bad Debts 

The Town uses the direct charge-off method of accounting for uncollectible ad valorem taxes and 

water system receivables. Although the method is not in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles, the overall effect on the financial statements is immaterial. 

Postretirement Benefits 

The Town provides postretirement benefits to its police department employees. 

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 

In some instances, the GASB requires a government to delav recognition of decreases in net position as 
expenditures until a future period. In other instances, governments are required to delay recognition of 

increases in net position as revenues until a future period. In these circumstances, deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources result from the delayed recognition of expenditures or 
revenues, respectively. 

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

BUDGET INFORMATION - The Town uses the following budget practices: 
During the November or December meeting, the Mayor and Town Council prepare a proposed 

operating budget for the fiscal year cornrnencing the following January 1st. The operating budget 

includes proposed expenditures and expenses and the means of financing them. During the 

December meeting, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordmance. The public is 

invited to attend all meetings. The Town clerk is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts hetween 

departments within any fund; however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures or expenses 
of any fund must be approved hy the board of aldermen. Appropriations lapse at the end of the 

year. The budgets are adopted on the cash basis. There was no budget amendment provided by 

management for the year ended December 31, 2023. 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

At December 31, 2023, the Town has cash and cash equivalents (book balances) totaling $448,627 
which comprises $44£+,627 of dernand deposits and no time deposits. 

These deposits are stated at cost, which approximates market. Under state law, these deposits (or 

the resulting bank balances) must he secured by federal deposit insurance, or the pledge of 

securities owned by the fiscal agent hank. The market value of the pledged securities plus the 
federal deposit 

These notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



TOWN OF COTTON VALLEY, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31,2023 

insurance must at all times equal the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent. These securities 

are held in the name of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial bank that is 

mutually acceptahle to both parties. 

At December 31, 2023, the Town has $448,027 in deposits (collected bank balances). These 
deposits are secured from risk by $448,027 of federal deposit insurance and $0 of pledged 
securities held by the custodial bank in the name of the fiscal agent bank. (GASB Category 3). 

Even though the pledged securities are considered uncollaterahzed (Category 3) under the 

provisions of GASB Statement No. 3, R.S. 39:1229 imposes a statutory requirement on the 

custodial bank to advertise and sell the pledged securities within 10 days of being notified hy the 

Town that the fiscal agent has failed to pay deposited funds upon demand. 

RECEIVABLES 

The receivables of $198,064 at December 31, 2023, are as follows: 

Class of Receivable 

General 

Fund 

gales Tax 

Fund 

Enterprise 

Fund Total 

Sales and Use Taxes 

    

Franchises Fees 

    

Ad Valorem Taxes 14,536 

  

14,536 

Licenses and Permits 18,476 

  

18.476 

Accounts 

  

165,052 165,052 

Total $ 33.012 $ $ 165,052 198,064 

RESTRICTED ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE 

Customer Deposit $ 32,154 

Bond and Interest Sinking Fund 5,916 

Bond Reserve Fund 1,069 

Contingency Fund 7,244 

 

$ 46,383 

These notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOWN OF COTTON VALLEY, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31,2023 

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS 

Fund Due From Due To 
General Fund $ 94,158 $ 1,614 
Sa les Ta x Fund 1,614 

 

Utility Fund 

 

94,158 

Total S 95,77 2 S 95,772 

CAPITAL ASSETS 

  

Capital assets activitv for the year ended December 31, 2023, was as follows: 
Beginning Ending 

Ba lance Adjustment increases Decreases Ba lance 

Governmental Activities: 

Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated 

Land w 27,250 $ 

  

27,251) 

Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 27,250 

   

27,250 

Buildings 122,824 

   

122,824 

improvements Other Than Buildings 6,185 

   

6,185 

Infrastructure 310,467 

   

310,467 

Machinery and Equipment 30,521 

   

30,521 

Vehicles 19,700 

   

1 9,700 

Total C d pital Assets Being Depreciated 4q1),o,)7 

   

-1, )0,607 

Accumulated Depreciation 1 99,500 

 

15,860 

 

215,1160 

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated (Net) $ 300,197 $ $ (15,860) $ - $ 284,337 

Business-Type Activities: 

     

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 

     

Land $ 16,000 $ 

  

$ 16,000 

Construction in Progress 

     

Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 16,000 

   

16,000 

Capital Assets Being Depreciated 

     

Distribution Svstem 5,046,208 

   

5,046,208 

Improvements Other Than Buildings 248,907 

   

248,907 

Equipment '38,739 

 

53,08") 

 

/91,71 

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 5,57,3,554 

 

53,951 

 

5,587,S36 

Accumulated Deprecia tion 2,888,511 

 

163,741 

 

3,052,252 

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated (Net) $2,645,343 

 

$(109,759) $ - $2,515,584 

These notes are an Integral part of these financial staternents. 
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TOWN OF COTTON VALLEY, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31,2023 

Depreciation expense is charged to governmental and busirtess-type activities as follows: 

 

Uoveritmental 

Business-

 

Type Total 

Puhlic Safety $ 13,302 $ $ 13,302 

General Qwernment 2,558 

 

2,558 

Water and Sewer 

 

163,741 163,741 

Total $ 15,860 S 163,741 $ 179,601 

LC/NG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 

Long-term liahility activity for the year ended December 31, 2023, was as follows: 

Amoun ts 

Be&fling Ending Due Within 

Balance Increase Decrease Balance One Year 

Business-Type Activities: 

Water and Sewer Bonds 422,824 13,084 40q,740 13,602 

$ 422,824 $ $ 13,084 $ 409,740 13,602 
=NM ZIP  

Business-Type Activities: 

$586,000 Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds dated August 12, 2003; due in 

480 monthly installments beginning October, 2007 which includes principal 

and interest; interest rate at 4.25%; final payment in 2044. 409,740 

Total Business-Type Activities $ 409,740 

These notes are an integral part ot these ti nark id] staternents. 
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TOWN OF COTTON VALLEY, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31,2023 

The Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds constitute special obligations of the Town solely secured 
by a lien on and pledge of the net revenues of the water and sewer systern. 

The annual requirements to amortize all loans outstanding at December 31, 2023, are as 
follows: 

Year Ending 

Principal 

Payments 

Interest 

Payments 

December 31, 2024 $ 13,602 $ 17,198 

December 31, 2025 14,240 16,560 

December 31, 2026 14,857 13,928 

December 31, 2027 15,501 15,299 

December 31, 2028 16,131 14,669 

December 31, 2029 and Thereafter 335,409 114,454 

 

$409,740 $192,108 

LEASES 

Capital Leases 

The Town leases water meters from SP Meters 2019 LLC under a capital lease. The economic 
substance of the lease is that the Town is financing the acquisition of the assets through the 
lease, and accordingly, it is recorded in the Town's assets and liabilities. 

The following is an analysis of the leased assets included in property and equipment: 

December 31, 

Water Meter,. 
Less Accumulated Depreciation 

142,S98 
(55.96S) 
86,930 

  

The lease contains a huyout provision at the beginning of each year. 

The following is a schedule hy years of future minimum payments requireii under the lease 
together with their present value as of December 31, 2023: 

Year Ending Payments 

December 31, 2024 $ 19,813 

December 31, 2025 21,614 

December 31, 2026 21,614 

December 31, 2027 21,614 

December 31, 2028 3,602 

Total Minimum Lease Payments $ 88,257 

Less Amount Representing Interest 4,560 

Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments 83,697 

These notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOWN OF COTTON VALLEY, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31,2023 

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System (MPRES)  

Plan Description  
MPERS was established by and the benefit provisions are authorized within Act 189 of 1973 
and amended by Louisiana Revised Statutes 11:2211 - 11:2233. Participants should refer to 
appropriate statutes for more complete information. 

Membership is mandatory for any full-time police officer employed by a municipality of the 
State of Louisiana and engaged in law enforcement, empowered to make arrests, provided he 
or she does not have to pay social security and providing he or she meets statutory criteria. 
MPERS issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements 
and required supplementary information for the System, which can be obtained at 
www.lampers.org or www.11a.state.la.us. 

Benefits Provided  
The following is a description of the plan and its benefits and is provided for general 
information purposes only. Participants should refer to the appropriate statutes for more 
complete information. 

Retirement 
Membership Prior to January 1, 2013  
A member is eligible for regular retirement after he has been a member of MPERS and has 25 
years of creditable service at any age or has 20 years of creditable service and is age 50 or has 12 
years of creditable service and is age 55. A member is eligible for early retirement after he has 
been a member of MPERS for 20 years of creditable service at any age with an actuarially 
reduced benefit. 

Benefit rates are 3.33% of average final compensation (average monthly earnings during the 
highest 36 consecutive months or joined months if service was interrupted) per number of years 
of creditable service to not exceed 100% of final salary. 

Upon the death of an active contributing member, or disability retiree, the plan provides for 
surviving spouses and minor children. Under certain conditions outlined in the statutes, the 
benefits range from 40% to 60% of the member's average final compensation for the surviving 
spouse. In addition, each child under age 18 receives benefits equal to 10% of the member's 
average final compensation or $200 per month, whichever is greater. 

Membership Commencing January 1, 2013  
Membership eligibility for regular retirement, early retirement, disability and survivor benefits 
are based on Hazardous Duty and Non-Hazardous Duty sub plans. Under the Hazardous Duty 
sub plan, a member is eligible for regular retirement after he has been a member of MPERS and 
has 25 years of creditable service at any age or has 12 years creditable service at age 55. Under the 
Non-Hazardous Duty sub plan, a member is eligible for regular retirement after he has been a 
member of MPERS and has 30 years of creditable service at any age, 25 years of creditable 
service at age 55, or 10 years of creditable service at age 60. Under both sub plans, a member is 

These notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOWN OF COTTON VALLEY, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31,2023 

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS - Continued 

eligible for early retirement after he has been a member of MPERS for 20 years of creditable 
service at any age, with an actuarially reduced benefit from age 55. 

Under the Hazardous and Non-Hazardous Duty sub plans, the benefit rates are 3% (generally) 
and 2.5%, respectively, of average final compensation (average monthly earnings during the 
highest 60 consecutive months or joined months if service was interrupted) per number of 
years of creditable service not to exceed 100% of final salary. 

Upon the death of an active contributing member, or disability retiree, the plan provides for 
surviving spouses and minor children. Under certain conditions outlined in the statutes, the 
benefits range from 25% to 55% of the member's average final compensation for the surviving 
spouse. In addition, each child under age 18 receives 10% of average final compensation or 
$200 per month whichever is greater. If deceased member had less than 10 years of service, 
beneficiary will receive a refund of employee contributions only. 

Cost-of-Living Adjustments  
The Board of Trustees is authorized to provide annual cost-of-living adjustments (COLA) 
computed on the amount of the current regular retirement, disability, beneficiary or survivor's 
benefit, not to exceed 3% in any given year. The Board is authorized to provide an additional 
2% COLA, computed on the member's original benefit, to all regular retirees, disability, 
survivors and beneficiaries who are 65 years of age or older on the cut-off date which 
determines eligibility. 

No regular retiree, survivor or beneficiary shall be eligible to receive a cost-of-living 
adjustment until benefits have been received at least one full fiscal year and the payment of such 
COLA, when authorized, shall not be effective until the lapse of at least one-half of the fiscal 
year. Members who elect early retirement are not eligible for a cost-of-living adjustment until they 
reach retirement age. 

A COLA may only be granted if funds are available from interest earnings in excess of normal 

requirements, as determined by the actuary. 

Deferred Retirement Option Plan (DROP)  
A member is eligible to elect to enter DROP when he is eligible for regular retirement based on 
the members' sub plan participation. Upon filing the application for the program, the 
employee's active membership in MPERS is terminated. At the entry date into DROP, the 
employee and employer contributions cease. The amount to be deposited into the DROP 
account is equal to the benefit computed under the retirement plan elected by the participant 
at date of application. The duration of participation in the DROP is 36 months or less. If 
employment is terminated after the three-year period, the participant may receive his benefits 
by lump sum payment or a true annuity. If employment is not terminated, active contributing 
membership into MPERS shall resume and upon later termination, he shall receive additional 
retirement benefits based on the additional service. For those eligible to enter DROP prior to 

These notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOWN OF COTTON VALLEY, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31,2023 

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS - Continued 

January I. 2004, DROP accounts shall earn interest subsequent to the termination of DROP 
participation at a rate of half of one percentage point below the percentage rate of return of 
MPERS' investment portfolio as certified by the actuary on an annual basis but will never lose 
money. For those eligible to enter DROP subsequent to January I. 2004. an irrevocable election 
is made to earn interest based on MPERS' investment portfolio return or a money market 
investment return. This could result in a negative earnings rate being applied to the account. 

If the member elects a money market investment return, the funds are transferred to a government 
money market account and earn interest at the money market rate. 

Initial Benefit Option Plan 
In 1999. the State Legislature authorized MPERS to establish an Initial Benefit Option program. 
Initial Benefit Option is available to members who are eligible for regular retirement and have 
not participated in DROP. The Initial Benefit Option program provides both a one-time single 
sum payment of up to 36 months of regular monthly retirement benefits. plus a reduced 
monthly retirement benefit for life. Interest is computed on the balance based on the same criteria as 
DROP. 

Contribution 
Contributions for all members are actuarially determined as required by state law but cannot 
be less than 9 % of the employees • earnable compensation excluding overtime but 
including state supplemental pay. 

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the employer and employee contribution rates for all 
members hired prior to January 1, 2013, and both Hazardous and Non-Hazardous Duty 
members hired after January 1, 2013, were 31.25% and 10%, respectively. The employer and 
employee contribution rates for all members whose earnable compensation is less than or 
equal to the poverty guidelines issued by the United States Department of Health and Human 
Services were 36.425% and 7.5%, respectively. 

Contributions to the pension plan were $14,963 during the year ending December 31, 2023. 

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

The Town is not involved in any litigation at December 31, 2023, nor is it aware of any 
unasserted claims. 

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) 

At December 31, 2023, the General Fund had a fund deficit of $75,463. The town's plan is to 
transfer funds to eliminate the deficit. 

These notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOWN OF COTTON VALLEY, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31,2023 

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Subsequent events have been evaluated through May 26, 2024. This date represents the date 
the financial statements were available to be issued. 

These notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 



Schedule 1 
TOWN OF COTTON VALLEY, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31,2023 

REVENUES 

Taxes - Ad Valorem 

Budgeted Amounts 

 

Favorable 

(Unfarvorable) 

\'araance Original 

 

Fuld) 

At tual 

Budgetary Basas 

$ 32,000 $ 41,225 $ 41313 $ 88 

Taxes - Other $ 4,500 $ n15 877 262 

Licenses and Pernuts 8.300 

 

10.215 11,037 1,422 

Franchise Fees 3,000 

 

15,000 18,532 1,532 

Fines and Forfeitures 75.000 

 

73,500 119,884 44,384 

Intergovernmental Revenues: 

     

Local Grants 

   

1,000 1,000 

State Grants 

    

- 

Miscellaneous 

   

10,860 I 6,8on 

Total Revenues 123,000 

 

.142,555 210,10g 67,554 

EXPENDITURES 

     

General Government 130,159 

 

118,175 177.'161 14-1.014 

Public Safety 9(i,300 

 

62,280 .124,318 162,03S) 

Capital Outlay 

    

- 

Total EN penditures 220,459 

 

3811,455 ;01.479 78. (4 76 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

Over (Under) Expenditures (97.459) 

 

(237.900) (91,370) 146,530 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

     

Operating Transfer In 

   

90,460 90,400 

Operating Transfer Out (30,000) 

 

6,500 

 

(6,500) 

Total Other Fmanc ing Sources (Uses) (3(►.000) 

 

0.500 90,460 83,960 

Net Change in Fund Balance (127,459) 

 

(231,40(1) (910i 230,490 

Total Net Position - Beginning 

   

(58,729) (58,729) 

Prior Period Adjustment 

     

Total Net Position - Ending i (127.459) 

 

(231.-100) (5q,03q) $ 17-1,761 

Notes to the Schedule 

     

(1) Method of budgetary accounting - GAAP - Modified Accrual Basis. 

(2) Explanation of matieral variances - underbudgeted public safety and capital outlay expenditures. 

The accompanying notes are dr1 integral part of these schedules. 
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Schedule 2 
TOWN OF COTTON VALLEY, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - SALES TAX FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31,2023 

REVENUES 

Budgeted Amou.nts 

 

Favorable 

Ong-trial 

 

Fuld I 

Ac mat (Unfarvorable 

Budgetary Basis Variarwe 

     

Sales Taxes $ 75,000 w 75,000 w 112,-;25 $ 37325 

Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

     

75,000 

 

75,000 1 P,115 717,3.75 

EXPENDITURES 

     

Highways and Streets 7,000 

 

7,00(1 

 

(7,000) 

Total Expenditures 7,000 

 

7.000 

 

(7,000 I 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

Over (Under) Expenditures 68,000 

 

68,000 112,325 44,325 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

     

Operating Transfer In 

    

- 

Operating Transfer Out (65.000) 

 

(65.000) (90,460) (25,460) 

Total Other Financing Sources Wsesi (65,00(1) 

 

(65,000 i (90,460 i (25,460) 

Net Change in Fund Balance 3.000 

 

3,000 21,863 18,863 

Total Net Position - Beginning 

   

3?,354 32,354 

Total Net Position - Ending 3,000 $ 1,000 $ 54,210 $ 51,210 

Notes to the Schedule 

     

(1) Method of budgetary accounting - GAAP - Modified Accrual Basis. 

(2) Explanation of matieral variances - no amendment for transfers out. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these schedules. 
-37-

 



TOWN OF COTTON VALLEY, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 
FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31,2023 

For the year ended December 31, 2()23, the Town adopted budgets on a cash basis for the general 

fund and sales tax fund. There were no amendments to the hudgets. The following schedule 

reconciles excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses on 

the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance (hudget basis) with the 

amounts shown on the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances 

(GAAP basis): 

 

General 

Fund 

Sales Tax 

Fund 

Net Change in Fund Balance (Budaet Basis) (910) 21,865 

AdjustmenN: 

  

Revenue Accruals - Net 3,237 

 

Expenditure Accruals - Net (7.964) 

 

Net Change in Fund Balance (GAAP Basis) (5.637) 21, _•;65 

These notes are an integral part of the schedule. 
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES 



TOWN OF COTTON VALLEY, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION PAID BOARD MEMBERS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31,2023 

Board N4ember Amount 
Ashlev E. Williams, Mayor 12,000 
Charlene Lewis 3,600 
Delvin O. Hawkins 3,600 
Evelvn Parish 3,600 
jailena G. Carter 3,600 
Reginald Shaw 3,600 

 

30,000 

Schedule 3 

These notes are an integral part of the schedules. 
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Schedule 4 
TOWN OF carroN VALLEY, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION, BENEFITS AND OTHER PAYNIENTS 
TO AGENCY HEAD OR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31,2023 

Agency Head Narne: Mayor Ashley E. Williams 

Purpose Williams 

Salary $ 12,000 

Benefits - Insurance 0 

Benefits - Retirement 

Benefits - Other 

Car Allowance 

 

Vehic le Provided by Government 0 

Per Diem 0 

Reimbursements 0 

Travel 0 

Registra tion Fees 0 

Conference Travel 1,265 

Continuing Professional Eduction Fees 

 

Telephone 0 

Unvouchered Expenses O 

Special Meals 73 

 

$ 13,338 

These notes are an integral part of the schedules. 
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OTHER REPORTS 



JUDY MONCRIEF CPA LLC 
910 Pierremont Road, Suite 311 

Shreveport, Louisiana 71106-2069 

Phone (318) 683-10(12 Fax (318) 670-8021 Email jerncpa@Jatt.net 

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

FINANC[AL REPORTING BASED C)N AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT A UDITING STANDARDS 

Mayor and Board of Aldermen 
Town of Cotton Valley 
Cotton Valley, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government A uditing Standards, 

issued hy the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements cif the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 

remaining fund information of the Town of Cotton Valley ("Town") as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise 

the Town's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated May 26, 2()24. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and perfornung our audit of the financial statements, we considered Town's internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Town's internal 
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town's internal 
control. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding 
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 

material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses of sigruficant 

deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as described in the accompanying Schedule 

of Findings and Questioned Costs, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we 

consider to be material weaknesses and significant deficiencies. 

A defii y in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 

management or empkyees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 

or detect and correct misstatements on a tirnely basis. A nmterial iveakiwss is a deficiency, or a 

combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 

material misstatement of the entity's financial stateinents will not be prevented or detected and 

corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiency described in the accompanying Schedule 
of Findings and Questioned Costs to be material weaknesses, 2023-001. 

A signific ant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 

governance. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be significant 

deficiencies. 
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
CONTINUED 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonahle assurance about whether Town's financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 

regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statements amounts. However, providing an 

opiruon on cornpliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, 
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance 

or other matters that are required to be reported under Goperiuncnt Au& ling Standard!, and which 
are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses as items 2023-002. 

Town's Response to Findings 

Town's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accornpanying schedule of 
findings and responses. Town's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 

compliance and the result c)f that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 

entity's internal control or on comphance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 

accordance with Gwernment Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and 

compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Judy Moncrief CPA LLC 
Shreveport, Louisiana 
May 26, 2024 
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Schedule 5 
TOWN OF COTTON VALLEY, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS AND CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 
FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31,2023 

A. Summary of Audit Results 

1. The auditor's report expresses art unmodified opinion on the general-purpose financial 
statements of the Town of Cotton Valley. 

2. Three instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the Town of Cotton 
Valley were disclosed during the audit. 

3. O-e significant deficiency relating to the audit of the financial staternents is reported in the 
Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control. 

2023-001. Underfund debt reserve requirements 

Condition: The Town does not currently have the required amount set aside for debt reserves 
according to its water and sewer loanagreements. 

Cnteria. Bonds require certain reserves to be set up for sinking fund, reserve fund, and contingency fund. 

Cause: Poor financial management in previous years under other management. 

Effect: Noncompliance with USDA reserve requirements 

Recommendation: The Town should work with the USDA Rural development office to get current 
with all required reserves. 

2023-002. Underfunded customer deposits  

Condition: The Town does not currently have the required arnount set aside for customer deposits. 

Criteria: State law requires the balance of customer deposits be reserved in a separate account. 

Cause: Poor financial management in previous years under other management. 

Effect: Noncompliance with reserve requirements. 

Recommendation: Tlie Town should immediately implement a plan to fully fund its customer 
deposits liability. 
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Schedule 
TOWN OF COTTON VALLEY, LOUISIANA 

SUMMARY OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECENIBER 31,2023 

2022-001. Underfund debt reserve requirements 

Status: Unresolved- see 2023-001. 

2022-002. Underfunded custoiner deposits 

Status: Unresolved- see 2023-002. 

-46-

 



TOWN OF COTTON VALLEY 
478 RESIDENT STREET 

COTTON VALLEY, LOUISIANA 71018 

CORRECTION ACTION PLAN 
For the Year Ending December 31, 2023 

Town of Cotton Valley hereby submits the followi ig corrective action plan as referenced in the 
Findings and Questioned Costs: 

2023-0(n. The Town agrees with the recommendations anc intends to implement thern immediately. 

2023-002. The Town agrees with the recommendations and intends to irnplement them immediately. 
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JUDY MONCRIEF CPA LLC 
910 Pierremont Road, Suite 311 

Shreveport, Louisiana 71106-2069 

Phone (318) 683-1002 Fax (318) 670-8021 Email jemcpa@att.net 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT ONAPPLYINGAGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

To the Mayor and Board of Aldermen of Town of Cotton Valley and the Louisiana Legislative 
Auditor: 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by Town of 
Cotton Valley (Entity) and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor (LLA) on the control and 
compliance (C/C) areas identified in the LLA's Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures (SAUPs) 
for the fiscal period January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023. The Entity's management is 
responsible for those CIC areas identified in the SAUPs. 

This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation 
standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and applicable 
standards of Government Auditing Standards. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the 
responsibility of the specified users of this report. Consequently, we make no representation 
regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described below either for the purpose for which 
this report has been requested or for any other purpose. 

The procedures and associated findings are as follows: 

1) Written Policies and Procedures 

A. Obtain and inspect the entity's written policies and procedures and observe whether they 
address each of the following categories and subcategories if applicable to public funds and the 
entity's operations: 

i. Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget. 

11. Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated, (2) how vendors are added to the 
vendor list, (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and 
purchase orders, (4) controls to ensure compliance with the Public Bid Law, and (5) 
documentation required to be maintained for all bids and price quotes. 

iii. Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving. 

iv. Receipts/Collections, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. Also, 
policies and procedures should include management's actions to determine the 
completeness of all collections for each type of revenue or agency fund additions (e.g., 
periodic confirmation with outside parties, reconciliation to utility billing after cutoff 
procedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket number sequences, agency fund forfeiture 
monies confirmation). 

v. Payroll/Personnel, including (1) payroll processing, (2) reviewing and approving time 
and attendance records, including leave and overtime worked, and (3) approval process 
for employee rates of pay or approval and maintenance of pay rate schedules. 
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vi. Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard 
terms and conditions, (3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process. 

vii. Travel and Expense Reimbursement, including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar 
thresholds by category of expense, (3) documentation requirements, and (4) required 
approvers. 

viii. Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, ilurchase cards, if applicable), including (1) 
how cards are to he controlled, (2) allowahle business uses, (3) documentation 
requirements, (4) required approvers of statements, and (5) monitoring card usage (e.g., 
determining the reasonableness of fuel card purchases). 

ix. Ethics, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 
42:1111-1121, (2) actions to he taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to 
monitor possible ethics violations, and (4) a requirement that documentation is 
maintained to demonstrate that all employees and officials were notified of any changes 
to the entity's ethics policy. 

x. Debt Service, including (1) deht issuance approval, (2) continuing disclosure/EMMA 
reporting requirements, (3) debt reserve requirements, and (4) debt service 
requirenlents. 

xi. Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity, including (1) 
identification of critical data and frequency of data hackups, (2) storage of hackups in a 
separate physical location isolated from the network, (3) periodic testing/verification 
that hackups can he restored, (4) use of antivirus software on all systems, (5) timely 
application of all available system and software patches/updates, and (6) identification 
of personnel, processes, and tools needed to recover operations after a critical event. 

xii. Prevention of Sexual Harassment, including R.S. 42:342-344 requirements for (1) agency 
responsibilities and prohibitions, (2) annual enlployee training, and (3) annual reporting. 

Written policies and procedures Tvere obtained. The Town is in compliance with the 
above policies. 

2) Board or Firl,ulre Co:lin:Wee 

A. Obtain and inspect the board/finance committee minutes for the fiscal period, as well as the 
board's enabling legislation, charter, bvlaws, or equivalent document in effect during the fiscal 
period, and 

i. Observe that the board/finance committee met with a quorum at least monthly, or on a 
frequency in accordance with the board's enabling legislation, charter, hylaws, or other 
equivalent document. 

No exceitt ions. 

ii. For those entities reporting on the governmental accounting model, observe whether the 
minutes referenced or included monthly budget-to-actual comparisons on the general 
fund, quarterly hudget-to-actual comparisons, at a minimum, on all proprietary funds, 
and semi-annual hudget-to-actual comparisons, at a minimum, on all special revenue 
funds. Alternatively, Pr those entities reporting on the not-pr-profit accounting model, observe 
that the minutes referenced or included finimcial tit tirity relating to priblic funds if those public 
funds comprised tttore than 10% of tlw entity's collections during the fiscal period. 

The mimites did not reference any various financial data nor any monthly budget-to-
actual comparisons. 
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iii. For governmental entities, obtain the prior year audit report and observe the unassimed 
fund balance in the general fund. If the general fund had a negative ending unassigned 
fund halance in the prior year audit report, observe that the minutes for at least one 
meeting during the fiscal period referenced or included a formal plan to eliminate the 
negative unassigned fund balance in the general fund. 

The minutes did not reference any negative unassigned fund balance. 

iv. Observe whether the board/finance committee received written updates of the progress of 
resolving audit finding(s), according to management's corrective action plan at each 
meeting until the findings are considered fully resolved. 

The minutes did not reference any updates of progress of resolving audit findings. 

3) Bank Recmiciliations 

À. Obtain a listing of entity bank accounts for the fiscal period from management and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Ask management to identify the entity's main 
operating account. Select the entity's main operating account and randomly select 4 additional 
accounts (or all accounts if less than 5). Randomly select one month from the fiscal period, obtain 
and inspect the corresponding hank statement and reconciliation for each selected account, and 
observe that: 

i. Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of the 
related statement closing date (e.g., initialed and dated or electronically logged); 

No exceptions noted. 

ii. Bank reconciliations include written evidence that a member of management or a hoard 
member who does not handle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each bank 
reconciliation within .1 month of the date the reconciliation was prepared (e.g., initialed 
and dated or electronically logged); and 

Bank reconciliations have initials of the acconutant reviewing them. 

iii. Management has documentation reflecting it has researched reconciling items that have 
been outstanding for more than 12 months from the statement closing date, if applicable. 

Reconciling items outstanding for more Hum 12 months were written oft: 

4) Collections (excluding electronic funds tramsfers) 

A. Obtain a listing of deposit sites for the fiscal period where deposits for cash/checks/money orders 
(cash) are prepared and management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly 
select 5 deposit sites (or all deposit sites if less than 5). 

Obtained a listing of de/Posit sites and the corresponding collection locations and numagement's 
representation that the listing is complete. 

B. For each deposit site selected, obtain a listing of collection locations and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one collection location for each 
deposit site (e.g., 5 collection locations for 5 deposit sites), obtain and inspect written policies and 
procedures relating to employee job duties (if there are no written policies or procedures, then 
inquire of employees about their job duties) at each collection location, and ohserve t.hat joh duties 
are properly segregated at each collection location such that 
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i. Employees responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawers/registers; 

No exceptions noted. 

ii. Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not also responsible for preparing/making 
bank deposits, unless another employee/official is responsible for reconciling collection 
documentation (e.g., pre-numbered receipts) to the deposit; 

No exceptions noted. 

iii. Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not also responsible for posting collection 
entries to the general ledger or suhsidiary ledgers, unless another employee/official is 
responsible for reconciling ledger postings to each other and to the deposit; and 

No exceptions noted. 

The employee(s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger and/or 
subsidiary ledgers, by revenue source and/or custodial fund additions, is (are) not also 
responsible for collecting cash, unless another employee/official verifies the reconciliation. 

No exceptions noted. 

C. Obtain from management a copy of the bond or insurance policy for theft covering all employees 
who have access to cash. Observe that the bond or insurance policy for theft was in force during 
the fiscal period. 

Coverage includes all employees during the fiscal period. 

D. Randomly select two deposit dates for each of the 5 hank accounts selected for Bank 
Reconciliations procedure #3A (select the next deposit date chronologically if no deposits were 
made on the dates randomly selected and randomly select a deposit if multiple deposits are made 
on the same day). Alternatively, the practitioner May use a source document other than bank statements 
Olen selecting the deTosit dates for testing, such as a cash collection log, daily report. receipt book, 
ek. Obtain supporting documentation for each of the 10 deposits and 

i. Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered. 

No exceptions noted. 

ii. Trace sequentially pre-numbered receipts, system reports, and other related collection 
documentation to the deposit slip. 

No exceptions noted. 

Trace the deposit slip total to the dr tua 1 deposit per the bank statement. 

No exceptions noted. 

iv. Observe that the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the collection 
location (within one week if the depository is more than 10 miles from the collection 
location or the deposit is less than $100 and the cash is stored securely in a locked safe or 
drawer). 

No exceptions noted. 

v. Trace the actual deposit per the hank statement to the general ledger. 

No exceptions noted. 
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5) Non-Payroll Disbursements (excludin,.; card purchases, travel reimbursements, and petty cash 
lwrchases) 

A. Obtain a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 locations (or all locations if less than 
5). 

Obtained a listing of locations that process payments and management's representation that the 
listing is complete. 

B. For each location selected under procedure #5A above, obtain a listing of those employees 
involved with non-payroll purchasing and payment functions. Obtain written policies and 
procedures relating to employee job duties (if the agency has no written policies and procedures, 
then inquire of employees about their job duties), and observe that joh duties are properly 
segregated such that 

Obtained a listing of all employees involved with non-payroll ;Purchasing and payment functions. 

At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a purchase, 
and placing an order or making the purchase; 

No exceptions noted. 

ii. At least two employees are involved in processing and approving payments to vendors; 

No exceptions noted. 

iii. The employee responsible for processing payments is prohibited from adding/modifving 
vendor files, unless another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes tn 
vendor files; 

No exceptions noted. 

iv. Either the employee/official responsible for signing checks mails the payment or gives the 
signed checks to an employee to mail who is not responsible for processing payments; and 

No exceptions noted. 

v. Only employees/officials authorized to sign checks approve the electronic disbursement 
(release) of funds, whether through automated clearinghouse (ACH), electronic funds 
transfer (EFT), wire transfer, or some other electronic means. 

No exceptions noted. 

[Note: Findings related to controls th(it constrain the legal authority of certain publh.  officials (e.g., mayor of 
a Lawrason Act unmiciralitu) should not be reported.] 

C. For each location selected under procedure #5A above, obtain the entity's non-payroll 
disbursement transaction population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtain 
management's representation that the population is complete. Randomly select 5 disbursements 
for each location, ohtain supporting documentation for each transaction, and 

Obtained a representation of the disbursement population Or the fiscal year laid management's 
assertion that the population is complete. 

i. Observe whether the disbursement, whether hy paper or electronic means, matched the 
related original itemized invoice and supporting documentation indicates that deliverables 
included on the invoice were received by the entitv, and 

A11 disbursements nuitched the related original invoice/billing statement. 
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ii. Observe whether the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g., initial/date, 
electronic logging) of segregation of duties tested under procedure #5B above, as 
applicable. 

Three of the five disbursements included evidence of segregation of duties. 

D. Using the entity's main operating account and the month selected in Bank Reconciliations 
procedure #3A, randomly select 5 non-payroll-related electronic disbursements (or all electronic 
disbursements if less than 5) and observe that each electronic disbursement was (a) approved hy 
only those persons authorized to disburse funds (e.g., sign checks) per the entity's policy, and (b) 
approved by the required number of authorized signers per the entity's policy. Note: If no do tronit 
payments were made flour the main operating thrMillt during the month selected the prat titioner Aould 
select an alternative month and/or account for testing that doe:,  include electronic disburt,entents. 

No exceptions n(1ted. 

6) Credit Cards/Debit Cards/Fuel Cards/Purchase Cards (Cards) 

A. Obtain from management a listing of all active credit cards, bank dehit cards, fuel cards, and 
purchase cards (cards) for the fiscal period, including the card numbers and the names of the 
persons who maintained possession of the cards. Obtain managemenes representation that the 
listing is complete. 

Obtained complete listing of all active credit cards, debit cards, fnel cards, and P-cards and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. 

B. Using the listing prepared hy management, randomly select 5 cards (or all cards if less than 5) that 
were used during the fiscal period. Randomly select one monthly statement or combined 
statement for each card (for a dehit card, randomly select one monthly hank statement). Obtain 
supporting documentation, and 

i. Observe whether there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and 
supporting documentation (e.g., original receipts for credit/debit card purchases, 
exception reports for excessive fuel card usage) were reviewed and approved, in writing 
(or electronically approved) by someone other than the authorized card holder (those 
instances requiring such approval that may constrain the legal authority of certain public 
officials, such as the mayor of a Lawrason Act municipality, should not be reported); and 

Observed there is evidence the monthly statement was reviewed and approved, in writing, 
by someone other Hum the authorized card holder. 

ii. Ohserve that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements. 

Observed finance charges ott One selected statement. 

C. Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under procedure #7B above, 
excluding fuel cards, randonily select 10 transactions (or all transactions if less than 1(l) from each 
statement, and ohtain supporting documentation for the transactions (e.g., each card should have 
10 transactions subject to inspection). For each transaction, observe t.hat it is supported hy (1) an 
original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased, (2) written documentation 
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of the business/public purpose, and (3) documentation of the individuals participating in meals 
(for meal charges only). For missing receipts, the practitioner should describe the nature of the 
transaction and observe whether management had a compensating control to address missing 
receipts, such as a "missing receipt statement" that is subject to increased scrutiny. 

(1) Transactions were supported by an itemized receipt. 

(2) Transactions were supported by documentation of business/public purpose 

(3) Not Applicable. 

7) Travel and Travel-Related Expense Reimbursements (excluding card transactions) 

A. Obtain from management a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements during 
the fiscal period and management's representation that the listing or general ledger is complete. 
Randomly select 5 reimbursements and obtain the related expense reimbursement forms/prepaid 
expense documentation of each selected reimbursement, as well as the supporting 
documentation. For each of the 5 reimbursements selected 

i. If reimbursed using a per diem, observe that the approved reimbursement rate is no more 
than those rates established either by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services 
Administration (www.gsa.gov); 

No exceptions noted. 

ii. If reimbursed using actual costs, observe that the reimbursement is supported by an 
original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased; 

No exceptions noted. 

iii. Observe that each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the business/public 
purpose (for meal charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of those 
individuals participating) and other documentation required by Written Policies and 
Procedures procedure #1A(vii); and 

No exceptions noted. 

iv. Observe that each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone 
other than the person receiving reimbursement. 

No exceptions noted. 

8) Contracts 

A. Obtain from management a listing of all agreements/contracts for professional services, materials 
and supplies, leases, and construction activities that were initiated or renewed during the fiscal 
period. Alternatively, the practitioner may use an equivalent selection source, such as an active vendor 
list. Obtain management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 
contracts (or all contracts if less than 5) from the listing, excluding the practitioner's contract, and 

i. Observe whether the contract was bid in accordance with the Louisiana Public Bid Law 
(e.g., solicited quotes or bids, advertised), if required by law; 

Not applicable. 

11. Observe whether the contract was approved by the governing body/board, if required by 
policy or law (e.g., Lawrason Act, Home Rule Charter); 

No exceptions noted. 
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If the contract was amended (e.g., change order), observe that the original contract terms 
provided for such dll amendment and that amendments were made in compliance with 
the contract terms (e.g., if approval is required for any amendment, the documented 
approval); and 

No exceptions noted. 

Randomly select one payment from the fiscal period for each of the 5 contrachl, obtain the 
supporting invoice, agree the invoice to the contract terms, and observe that the invoice 
and related payment agreed to the terms and conditions of the contract. 

No exceptions noted. 

9) Payroll and Personnel 

A. Ohtain a listing of employees and officials employed during the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 employees or officials, ohtain 
related paid salaries and personnel files, and agree paid salaries to authorized salaries/pay rates 
in the personnel files. 

Obtained complete listing of employees and management's representation that the listing is 
complete. No personnel files containing authorized pay rates l'or the 5 employees selected to test 
were nmintained by management. 

B. Randomly select one pay period during the fiscal period. For the 5 employees or officials selected 
under procedure #9A above, ohtain attendance records and leave documentation for the pay 
period, and 

i. Ohserve that all selected employees or officials documented their daily attendance and 
leave (e.g., vacation, sick, compensatory); 

No exceptions noted. 

ii. Observe whether supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected 
employees or officials; 

No exceptions noted. 

iii. Observe that anv leave accrued or taken during the pay period is reflected in the entity's 
cumulative leave records; and 

No exceptions noted. 

iv. Observe the rate paid to the employees or officials agrees to the authorized salary/pay rate 
found within the personnel file. 

No personnel files to observe. 

C. Ohtain a listing of those employees or officials that received termination payments during the 
fiscal period and management's representation that the list is complete. Randomly select two 
employees or officials and obtain related documentation of the hours and pav rates used in 
management's termination payment calculations and the entity's policy on termination payments. 
Agree the hours to the employee's or official's cumulative leave records, agree the pay rates to the 
employee's or official's authorized pay rates in the employee's or official's personnel files, and 
agree the termination payment to entity policy. 

Obtained a signed statement from management that stated no employee received a termination 
payment during the year. 
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D. Obtain management's representation that employer and employee portions of third-party payroll 
related amounts (e.g., payroll taxes, retirement contributions, health insurance premiums, 
garnishments, workers' compensation premiums, etc.) have heen paid, and any associated forms 
have been filed, hy required deadlines. 

No exceptions noted. 

10) Ethics 

A. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from Payroll and Personnel prucedure #9A 
obtain ethics documentation from management, and 

i. Observe whether the documentation demonstrates that each employee/official completed 
one hour of ethics training during the calendar year as required hy R.S. 42:1170; and 

Observe whether the entity maintains documentation which demonstrates that each 
employee and official were notified of any changes to the entity's ethics policy during the 
fiscal period, as applicahle. 

The Town has a ivritten policy concerning ethics ivhich requires employees to complete one 
hour of ethics training during the calendar year and maintains the certifications of 
achieilement. 

B. Inquire and/or observe whether the agency has appointed an ethics designee as required by B.S. 
42:1170. 

No exceptions noted. 

11) Debt Service 

A. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes and other deht instruments issued during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Select all deht instruments on the listing, 
obtain supporting documentation, and observe that State Bond Commission approval was 
ohtained for each debt instrument issued as required by Article VII, Section 8 of the Louisiana 
Constt tution. 

Not amilicable. 

B. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period and managemenes 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one hond/note, inspect deht 
covenants, ohtain supporting documentation for the reserve balance and payments, and agee 
actual reserve balances and payments to those required hy debt covenants (including contingency 
funds, short-lived asset fu.nds, or other funds required by the deht covenants). 

Obtained a listing of bonds outstanding and management's representation that the listing is 
complete. The randomly selected bond's reseme balance was underfunded compared to what the 
debt covenant requires. 

12) Fraud Notice 

A. Ohtain a listing of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Select all misappropriations on the 
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listing, obtain supporting documentation, and observe that the entity reported the 
misappropria tion(s) to the legislative auditor and the district attorney of the parish in which the 
entity is domiciled as required hy R.S. 24:513. 

Management has asserted that there were not any misappropriations af funds or assets. 

B. Observe that the entity has posted, on its premises and website, the notice required by R.S. 24:523.1 
concerning the reporting of misappropriation, fraud, waste, or ahuse of public funds. 

Observe that the entity has the notice posted on its premises. 

13) Information Technology Disaster Recoperu/Business Continuity 

A. Perform the following procedures, verbally discuss the results with management, and report 
"We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management." 

i. Obtain and inspect the entity's most recent documentation that it has hacked up its critical 
data (if there is no written documentation, then inquire of personnel responsible for 
backing up critical data) and observe evidence that such backup (a) occurred within the 
past week, (h) was not stored on the government's local server or network, and (c) was 
encrypted. 

The accountant overseeing the accounting function backs up the upon each risit to the 
rewn. 

ii. Ohtain and inspect the entitys most recent documentation that it has tested/verified that 
its backups can be restored (if there is no written documentation, then inquire of personnel 
responsible for testing/verifying backup restoration) and ohserve evidence that the 
test/verification was successfully performed within the past 3 months. 

Back up files were provided by the accountant overseeing the accounting finiction. 

iii. Obtain a listing of the entity's cornputers currentiv in use and their related locations, and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 computers 
and observe while management demonstrates that the selected computers have current 
and active antivirus software and that the operating system and accounting system 
software in use are currently supported hv the vendor. 

B. Randomly select 5 terminated employees (or all terminated employees if less than 5) using the list 
of terminated employees ohtained in Payroll and Personnel procedure #9C. Observe evidence 
that the selected terminated employees have been removed or disabled from the network. 

Terminated employees have been removed from the active employee list in QuickBooks. 

C. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials front Payroll and Personnel procedure #9A, 
ohtain cybersecurity training documentation front management, and observe that the 
documentation demonstrates that the following employees/officials with access to the agency's 
information technology assets have completed cybersecurity training as required lw R.S. 42:1267. 
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The requirements are as follows: 

• Hired before June 9, 2020 - completed the training; and 
• Hired on or after June 9, 2020 - completed the training within 30 days of initial 

service or employment. 

Observed documentation for cybersecurity training. 

14) Prevention of sexual Harassment 

A. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from Payroll and Personnel procedure #9A, 
obtain sexual harassment training documentation from management, and observe that the 
documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed at least one hour of sexual 
harassment training during the calendar year as required by R.S. 42:343. 

Observed the sexual harassinent training docuinentation and certifications. 

B. Observe that the entity has posted its sexual harassment policy and complaint procedure on its 
website (or in a conspicuous location on the entity's premises if the entity does not have a 
website). 

Observed the posting of Town's sexual harassment policy and complaint procedures on its 
website. 

C. Obtain the entity's annual sexual harassment report for the current fiscal period, observe that the 
report was dated on or before February 1, and observe that the report includes the applicable 
requirements of R.S. 42:344: 

i. Number and percentage of public servants in the agency who have completed the training 
requirements; 

ii. Number of sexual harassment complaints received by the agency; 

iii. Number of complaints which resulted in a finding that sexual harassment occurred; 

iv. Number of complaints in which the finding of sexual harassment resulted in discipline 
or corrective action; and 

v. Amount of time it took to resolve each complaint. 

Manageinent has asserted that there have been no sexual harassinent reported for the 
current year. 

We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review, the objective of which 
would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on those CIC areas identified 
in the SAUPs. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had w e 
performed additional procedures; other matters might have come to our attention that would have 
been reported to you. 
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The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those CIC7 areas 

identified in the SAUPs, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control 

or compliance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana 

Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the LLA as a public document. 

Judy Moncrief CPA LLC 
Shreveport, Louisiana 
May 26, 2024 
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